MINUTES

of the

REGULATORY COMMITTEE

held on 9 July 2020 at 7.35pm

Present:

Councillor L. Mascot (Chair)
Councillors D.G. Jones (Vice-Chair)

Councillors R.H. Ambor, L. Ashley. D.J.R. Clark, A.E. Davidson, J.A. Frascona, P.V. Hughes, A.M. John, R.J. Lee, L.A. Millane, S. Rajesh and I.C. Roberts

1. Apologies for Absence

No apologies for absence were received.

2. Minutes

The minutes of the meeting held on 11 June 2020 were agreed as a correct record and signed by the Chair.

3. Declaration of Interests

All Members were reminded to declare any Disclosable Pecuniary interests or other registerable interests where appropriate in any items of business on the meeting's agenda. None were made.

4. Public Question Time

No questions were asked or statements made.

5. Application for an increase in the fares charged by Hackney Carriage Vehicles

The Committee were asked to consider a request submitted for an increase in the Hackney Carriage fares. The Committee were asked to determine whether or not to approve the proposed fares and tariffs in Appendix B for wider consultation. It was noted that if any objections were received these would be considered at the next meeting of the Committee in September 2020. Members were also asked if they approved the increase, to consider that during the recalibration process a switch to calendar meters and to accept a certificate from the calibration engineer in lieu of the current manual checks by Licensing officers.

The Committee heard that a request had been received, requesting an increase along with supporting information that was available in the report before members. It was noted that the fares had last been increased in July 2016. The report also detailed a petition that had been carried out by the person making the request which indicated significant support from the trade for the increase. Members were informed that if the increase was approved, the

proposals would be published in a local newspaper and online for a minimum period of 14 days to allow objections to be received.

The Committee heard from the individual who had submitted the request, who noted that the last increase was in 2016 and that due to ever rising costs in operating a vehicle an increase was now required. The Committee heard that the request had been submitted earlier in the year before Covid-19 and that the current timing was not ideal, but along with many other areas of the economy, taxi drivers were now earning less due to a much lower demand. It was noted that the increase requested would help drivers with their higher costs etc.

The Committee agreed to approve the proposals and for the 14-day consultation period to start soon. It was also agreed for the Director of Public Places to set a commencement date for the replacement/recalibration of meters and a suitable date for the implementation of any revised tariff. The Committee also agreed to set taximeters to 'calendar' or be replaced to allow this, along with a change in policy allowing certificates to be submitted by the meter calibration engineer, removing the need for officers to test them.

RESOLVED that;

- the fares and tariff in Appendix B be approved, with the Director of Public Places being authorised to take the necessary steps to commence the consultation period and;
- 2. the Director of Public Places be approved to agree a commencement date for the replacement/recalibration of meters and a suitable date for any revised tariff and;
- 3. the proposal for Taximeters be set to 'calendar' or be replaced to allow this be approved and;
- 4. a change in policy be approved allowing certificates to be submitted by the meter calibration engineer, removing the need for officers to test them.

6. Urgent Business

There were no matters of urgent business

Exclusion of the Public

Resolved that under Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972 the public be excluded from the meeting for Items 7 and 8 on the grounds that they involved the likely disclosure of exempt information failing within paragraph 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act.

7. Review of a Hackney Carriage/Private Hire Dual Drivers Licence – Mr B

Public interest statement: It is not in the public interest to disclose the content of the report because the information in it concerns the interests and circumstances of an individual who has an expectation that such information would not normally be released to the public. To do otherwise would establish a precedent for the future treatment of personal information.

The Committee was informed that under the provisions of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976, a district council should not grant a licence to drive a

hackney carriage or private hire vehicle unless it was satisfied that the applicant, amongst other criteria, is a fit and proper person to hold such a licence. It was noted by the Committee that there is no statutory definition of what constitutes a fit and proper person, but that Chelmsford City Council had established its own guidelines which the Committee was required to have regard to when determining applications.

The Committee was informed that they were being asked to consider a review of a dual hackney carriage/ private hire drivers licence held by Mr. B to determine whether or not he is a fit and proper person to continue to hold the licence.

Members were advised that the following options were available to them;

- To revoke the licence
- To suspend the licence
- To add any conditions to the licence they feel necessary
- To allow Mr B to continue to hold a Hackney Carriage/ Private Hire Dual Drivers licence

The Committee was reminded that Items 7 and 8 were to be considered as one item and any questions or comments from Mr B would be considered at the end of Item 8.

The Committee received a report detailing various incidents in March 2020 regarding the conduct of Mr B that raised concerns as to whether he was still a fit and proper person to hold a licence. The Committee were taken through the incidents which begun with a vehicle renewal issue and supporting information on them had been provided in the appendices to the report. In summary, it was felt by Licensing Officers that during their correspondence with Mr. B both in person and over the phone that he had been argumentative, hostile, intimidating and abusive. Various statements from Licensing officers and a member of the customer services team were available as appendices to the report.

8. Review of a Hackney Carriage/Private Hire Dual Drivers Licence – Mr B

Public interest statement: It is not in the public interest to disclose the content of the report because the information in it concerns the interests and circumstances of an individual who has an expectation that such information would not normally be released to the public. To do otherwise would establish a precedent for the future treatment of personal information.

The Committee was informed that under the provisions of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976, a district council should not grant a licence to drive a hackney carriage or private hire vehicle unless it was satisfied that the applicant, amongst other criteria, is a fit and proper person to hold such a licence. It was noted by the Committee that there is no statutory definition of what constitutes a fit and proper person, but that Chelmsford City Council had established its own guidelines which the Committee was required to have regard to when determining applications.

The Committee was informed that they were being asked to consider a review of a dual hackney carriage/ private hire drivers licence held by Mr. B to determine whether or not he is a fit and proper person to continue to hold the licence.

Members were advised that the following options were available to them;

- To revoke the licence
- To suspend the licence
- To add any conditions to the licence they feel necessary
- To allow Mr. B to continue to hold a Hackney Carriage/ Private Hire Dual Drivers licence

The Committee received a report which was to be considered in line with Item 7. The report detailed a further incident regarding the behaviour and attitude of Mr B. This matter had been reported by a member of the public and a redacted copy of the complaint was available for members. The allegation made concerned a dispute with another road user over a right of way, ending with Mr B stopping in the carriageway, hanging out of the window and shouting expletives at the complainant. It was noted by the Committee that Mr B had admitted to driving the relevant Hackney Carriage at the time, but disputed the complainant's version of events.

Therefore, it was noted by members, that Licensing officers felt this demonstrated further a concern in relation to the behaviour and driving of Mr B.

Mr. B attended the meeting to speak to the Committee and he had also provided a statement just prior to the meeting which was also considered by members during their deliberation on the matters raised in Items 7 and 8. Mr. B stated that there had been various issues whilst trying to renew his vehicle licence but that he had followed all of the usual processes as he had done for many years previous. Mr. B stated that he had not received the usual reminders and that this had led to delays with the mechanical inspection on his vehicle. Mr. B informed the Committee that throughout the process he felt he had been rudely spoken to and had therefore raised a complaint regarding the conduct of officers. Mr. B strongly disputed the view that he had been abusive towards various members of staff and stated that he had acted calmly when dealing with various officers both in person and over the phone. Mr. B also disputed the complaint made by another road user and that he had been tailgated by the other road user who had caused the incident. In summary Mr. B said he felt victimised and that his status as a 'fit and proper' person should not be under consideration by the Committee.

In response to questions from members, officers clarified that CCTV of the incidents raised in the Civic Centre reception was not available as it had gone past the three-month retention period. One Licensing Officer had seen the footage however previously and confirmed that the actions of Mr. B collaborated with the statement from the Customer Services staff member, in that Mr. B appeared intimidating and abusive to staff.

The Committee gave careful consideration to the officers' reports and to the representations made by Mr. B at the meeting.

The Committee found that on the balance of probabilities, they preferred the account of events given by the other taxi driver (the complainant) and the Chelmsford City Council staff.

The Committee agreed that the actions of Mr. B, described by officers were of serious concern. The Committee felt that there was a significant issue with the behaviour or Mr. B in the way he dealt with the incident with the other taxi driver (complainant) whilst he had a passenger in the car and the way he dealt with Council staff and therefore they were not satisfied that he was a fit and proper person to drive a licenced vehicle, in turn providing a service to members of the public.

RESOLVED that the dual drivers licence held by Mr. B be revoked pursuant to Section 61 (1) (b) of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 for "other reasonable cause"; namely that due to his conduct the Committee is no longer satisfied that he is a fit and proper person to hold such a licence.

The meeting closed at 9.10pm.

Chair